December 12, 2003

Members

Allegheny County Council

119 Courthouse

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15219

Dear Council Members:

I have executed and am returning to you Bill No. 1351-03, the Resolution adopting the Grants, Special Accounts and Agency Fund Budgets for the County fiscal year beginning January 1, 2004 and ending December 31, 2004.  I have signed this Resolution although I disagree with your decision to include therein the line item appropriation for Special Sheriff Revenue Fund in the amount of $1,500,000.  I strongly object to the inclusion of this so-called fund into the Special Accounts Budget, because the revenues going into this fund are simply the result of increases in certain fees collected by the Sheriff’s Office.  These monies belong to the County and should be deposited into its General Fund.

I would veto this appropriation but for two reasons: (1) the uncertainty over the application of the Chief Executive’s line item veto authority which is pending before Commonwealth Court; and (2) I have been requested by the Chief Executive-elect not to veto any of the 2004 budget resolutions.  I will address each of these reasons separately.

First, the “Line Item Veto Case” was argued this past Tuesday in Commonwealth Court, pursuant to my direction that an expedited determination be sought.  The Court has not, however, yet rendered its decision.  Since the Commonwealth Court has not yet acted, were I to exercise a veto of this item, I would not only have to eliminate it, but the entire appropriation for the Sheriff under the 2004 Operating Budget, because of the very tortured interpretation of the line-item veto power by the trial court in the Line Item Veto Case.  That court’s holding is that I must eliminate both appropriations even though I may object to only one.  I do not believe it is fair or appropriate to eliminate both appropriations and risk the potential  budgetary chaos that this may cause.

Second, the Chief Executive-elect has requested that I not veto the 2004 budgets.  He is entitled to the courtesy of an orderly transition, and to start his administration off on exactly the budgetary footing that he wants, I will honor his request although I believe that the set aside, in a separate fund outside of the Operating Budget, monies that clearly belong to the County, is incorrect, sets a bad precedent and grossly understates the true operating appropriation for the Sheriff’s Office by $1.5 million.

Pursuant to Section 5-801.03D  of the Administrative Code of Allegheny County only proceeds from specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to specific purposes should be included in the Grants and Special Accounts Budget.  The revenues you have directed to the Special Sheriff Revenue Fund are neither “special” nor restricted except that such fees are to be used, pursuant to Act 47(a), to “offset existing costs.”

When I vetoed this same fund in the 2003 Special Accounts Budget, the Sheriff filed a mandamus action to compel the establishment of it.  The Honorable Joseph M. James, however, ruled in this case, i.e., Peter R. DeFazio v. James C. Roddey, No. GD02-24871, that any increase in the Sheriff’s fee revenues as a result of Act 47(a) does not require the information of a “special account”, and that such revenues may be placed in the County’s General Fund in partial reimbursement for the millions of dollars the County expends from the General Fund annually for the cost of operating the Sheriff’s Office.

Accordingly, the Special Sheriff’s Revenue Fund has no place in the Special Accounts Budget.  Such placement is not only legally inappropriate, it is also an unacceptable from an accounting perspective since it seeks to segregate what are in reality County operating revenues from the Operating Budget.  This practice should be stopped, otherwise, other offices and departments will seek to have similar accounts, which would undermine the budgetary controls on expenditures  by masking the true size of Operating Budget appropriations.  You have appropriated $11,047,815 to the Sheriff’s Office for fiscal year 2004 pursuant to the Operating Budget.  If you believe this amount is insufficient, then you should have increased that Office’s Operating Budget appropriation, rather than form a “special account” with monies that belong in the General Fund.

I have reviewed the foregoing with representatives of the Chief Executive-elect.  I further advised them that I would agree to budgetary amendments which would result in the elimination of the Special Sheriff’s Revenue Fund from the Special Accounts 

Budget, but would transfer these revenues back to the County and permit an increase in the Sheriff’s Operating Budget appropriation to $12,547,815.  Notwithstanding this, the request that I accept these budgets as is has not changed and I feel obliged to honor it.







Sincerely,







James C. Roddey
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